**SHORT FORM TERMS & CONDITIONS FOR GOOD AND/OR SERVICES**

**SHORT CONTRACT**

for

**THE PROVISION OF OPTIONS APPRAISAL AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT SERVICES  
 IN RUTLAND**

Between

**RUTLAND COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT COUNCIL**

of Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP (“the Council”)

and

**SUPPLIER NAME**

(Company Registration Number xxx and Charity Registration Number xxx)whose registered address is at   
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  
 (“the Supplier”)

**Commencement Date: 08/06/2022**

**Expiry Date: 30/10/2022**

**Dated ………………………….20[ ]**

Table of Contents

**A.** [**PRELIMINARIES**](#preliminaries)

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

2. DUE DILIGENCE

3[. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS](#_Toc417986766)

4. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

**B.** [**DURATION OF CONTRACT**](#durationofcontract)

5. CONTRACT PERIOD

**C.** [**CONTRACT PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE**](#contractperformance)

6. SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES

7[. QUALITY STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE](#_Toc417986810)

8. CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENTS AND BEST VALUE DUTY

9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING

10. SUPPLIER’S FINANCIAL STABILITY

11[. CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS](#_Toc417986785)

12. RECORD KEEPING AND MONITORING

13. AUDIT ACCESS AND INSPECTION

**D.** [**PAYMENT, EXPENSES AND TAXATION**](#paymentexpenses)

14. PRICE AND PAYMENT

15. RECOVERY OF SUMS

**E.** [**SUPPLIER PERSONNEL AND SUPPLY CHAIN MATTERS**](#supplierpersonnel)

16[. COUNCIL’S CONTRACT MANAGER](#_Toc417986765)

17. SUPPLIER’S CONTRACT MANAGER

18. SUPPLIER’S EMPLOYEES

19. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES

20. DISCLOSURE & BARRING SERVICE (DBS) REQUIREMENTS

21. WORKFORCE COMPETENCIES AND TRAINING

**F.** [**INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND INFORMATION**](#intellectualproperty)

22. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

23. CONFIDENTIALITY

24. DATA PROTECTION

25. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

26. TRANSPARENCY

27. PUBLICITY

**G.** [**LIABILITY, INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE**](#liabilityindemnity)

28. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

29. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

**H.** [**REMEDIES**](#remedies)

30. COUNCIL REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT

31. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

32. CUMULATIVE REMEDIES

**I.** [**TERMINATION AND EXIT MANAGEMENT**](#terminationandexit)

33. BREAK CLAUSE

34. TERMINATION

35. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY

36. EXIT MANAGEMENT

Table of Contents

**J.** [**MISCELLANEOUS**](#miscellaneous)

37. NOTICES

38. PREVENTION OF BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION

39. INDUCEMENTS

40. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

41. COUNCIL’S POLICIES

42. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

43. ENVIRONMENTAL

44. HEALTH AND SAFETY

45. EQUIPMENT

46. TRANSFER, SUB-CONTRACTING AND RESPONSIBILITY

47. CONTRACT VARIATION

48. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

49. CHANGE IN LAW

50. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

51. NO WAIVER

52. SEVERANCE

53. FORCE MAJEURE

**K.** [**SAFEGUARDING**](#safeguarding)

54. SAFEGUARDING

55. COMPLAINTS AND SERIOUS UNTOWARD INCIDENTS

SIGNATURES PAGE

[**SCHEDULE 1:** GOODS AND/OR SERVICE SPECIFICATION](#schedule1)

[**SCHEDULE 2:** CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND INSURANCE](#schedule2)

[**SCHEDULE 3:** PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING](#schedule3)

[**SCHEDULE 4:** REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES](#schedule4)

[**SCHEDULE 5:** PROCESSING PERSONAL DATA AND DATA SUBJECTS](#schedule5)

**SHORT FORM TERMS & CONDITIONS FOR GOOD AND/OR SERVICES**

This Agreement is made on the [ ] day of [ ] 20[xx]

**BETWEEN:**

**(1)** **Rutland County Council District Council** of Catmose, Oakham, Rutland LE15 6HP (the “Council”); and

**(2)** [Insert **Supplier’s Registered Name**] (Company Registration number [xxxx] and/or Registration Charity number [xxxx]) whose registered address is [xxxx] (the “Supplier”).

(together “the Parties” and each a “Party”).

#### WHEREAS:

The Council and the Supplier have entered into this Contract (as defined below) whereby the Supplier shall provide the Goods and/or Services (as defined in Schedule 1) on the terms and conditions and Schedules set out in this Contract and the Council shall pay to the Supplier the Price in respect of those Goods and/or Services (as set out in Schedule 2).

#### IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows:

1. PRELIMINARIES
2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Contract the following terms and expressions shall have the following meanings:

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **"Approval"** | means the prior written consent of the Council and "**Approve**" and "**Approved**" shall be interpreted accordingly; |
| **"Auditor"** | means:   * 1. the Council’s internal and external auditors;   2. the Council’s statutory or regulatory auditors;   3. any party formally appointed by the Council to carry out audit or similar review functions; and successors or assigns of any of the above; |
| **“Best Value Duty”** | means the duty imposed by section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 (the LGA 1999) as amended, and under which the Council is under a statutory duty to continuously improve the way its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness and to any applicable guidance issued from time to time; |
| **"Calendar Day”** | means a 24 hour day which shall include weekends and bank holidays in England and Wales; |
| **"Change in Law"** | means any change in Law or policy which impacts on the supply of the Goods and/or Services and performance of the Contract terms which comes into force after the Commencement Date; |
| **“Commencement Date”** | means (insert date); |
| **"Commercially Sensitive Information"** | means commercially sensitive information relating to the Supplier, its Intellectual Property or its business or which the Supplier has indicated to the Council that, if disclosed by the Council, would cause the Supplier significant commercial disadvantage or material financial loss; |
| **“Confidential Information”** | means any information which has been designated as confidential by either Party in writing or that ought to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored) including information which relates to the Goods and/or Service, the business, affairs, properties, assets, trading practices, developments, trade secrets, Intellectual Property, know-how, Employees and suppliers of either Party, all personal data and sensitive personal data (within the meaning of the Data Protection Legislation); |
| **“Contract”** | means these terms and conditions and any Schedules; |
| **“Contract Period”** | means the full term of this Contract from the Commencement Date until the Expiry Date, which shall in no event exceed a maximum duration of four (4) Years; |
| **“Council”** | means Rutland County Council and where the context so admits includes any person which takes over or assumes the statutory functions or administrative responsibilities of the Council (whether in whole or in part) or which is controlled by or is under common control with the Council (and the expression “control” shall mean the power to direct or cause the direction of the general management and policies of the person in question but only for so long as such control exists); |
| **“Council’s Contract Manager”** | means the person duly appointed by the Council and notified in writing to the Supplier to act as the representative of the Council for the purpose of the Contract or as amended from time to time, as set out in Schedule 4; (to be completed on award) |
| **"Data Controller"** | has the meaning given to it in the General Data Protection Regulation *(Regulation (EU) 2016/679)*, as amended from time to time; |
| **"Data Processor"** | has the meaning given to it in the General Data Protection Regulation *(Regulation (EU) 2016/679)*, as amended from time to time; |
| **"Data Sub-processor"** | means any third party appointed to process Personal Data on behalf of the Supplier related to this Contract; |
| **"Data Protection Legislation”** | means:  the General Data Protection Regulation *(Regulation (EU) 2016/679)*, the LED and any applicable national implementing Laws as amended from time to time;  the Data Protection Act 2018; and  all applicable Law about the processing of personal data and privacy; |
| **“Data Protection Impact Assessment”** | means an assessment by the Controller of the impact of the envisaged processing on the protection of Personal Data; |
| **"Data Subject "** | has the meaning given to it in the General Data Protection Regulation *(Regulation (EU) 2016/679)*, as amended from time to time; |
| **“Data Loss Event”** | means any event that results, or may result, in unauthorised access to Personal Data held by the Supplier under this Contract, and/or actual or potential loss and/or destruction of Personal Data in breach of this Contract, including any Personal Data Breach; |
| **“Data Subject Access Request”** | means a request made by, or on behalf of, a Data Subject in accordance with rights granted pursuant to the Data Protection Legislation to access their Personal Data; |
| **"Default"** | means any breach of the obligations of the Supplier (including but not limited to a material breach) or any other default, act, omission, negligence or negligent statement of the Supplier, the Supplier Employees or of its Sub-Contractors (howsoever arising) in connection with or in relation to the subject-matter of this Contract and in respect of which the Supplier is liable to the Council; |
| **“Delivery”** | means in respect of Goods, the time at which the Goods have been delivered and, in respect of Services, the time at which the Services have been provided or performed by the Supplier in accordance with this Contract and accepted by the Council, and "**Deliver**" and "**Delivered**" shall be interpreted accordingly; |
| **“Delivery Instructions”** | means the instructions provided in the Specification and/or any other information that the Council considers appropriate for the provision of the Goods and/or Services; |
| **"Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS)"** | means the Non-Departmental Public Body which helps employers make safer recruitment decisions and prevents unsuitable people from working with vulnerable groups, including children and vulnerable adults; |

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **"DBS Check(s)"** | means a Criminal Records Check on an individual carried out through the Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS); |
| **"Dispute"** | means any dispute, difference or question of interpretation arising out of or in connection with this Contract, including any dispute, difference or question of interpretation relating to the Goods and/or Services, failure to agree in accordance with the Variation procedure or any matter where this Contract directs the Parties to resolve an issue by reference to the Dispute Resolution Procedure; |
| **"Dispute Resolution Procedure"** | means the dispute resolution procedure set out in this Contract, clause 31 (Dispute Resolution Procedure); |
| **"Due Diligence Information"** | means any information relating to the Contract supplied to the Supplier by or on behalf of the Council prior to the Contract Commencement Date; |
| **“EIR”** | means the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 together with any guidance and/or codes of practice issued by the Information Commissioner or relevant government department in relation to such regulations; |
| **“Employee”** | means all persons engaged by the Supplier to perform this Contract and which shall include the Supplier's directors, officers, employees, agents, consultants, suppliers and/or any Sub-contractor; |
| **"Enhanced DBS Check & Barred List Check"** | means a disclosure of information comprised in an Enhanced DBS Check, together with information from Barred List Check (child & adult) as appropriate; |
| **"Expiry Date"** | means:  the end date of the initial Contract Period or any Extension Period; or  if this Contract is terminated before the date specified in (i) above, the earlier date of termination of this Contract; |
| **"Extension Period"** | means the extension term of this Contract from the end date of the initial Contract Period to the end date of the Extension Period, as stated in clause 5.2; |
| **"FOIA"** | means the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made under that Act from time to time, together with any guidance and/or codes of practice issued by the Information Commissioner or relevant government department in relation to such regulations; |
| **“Force Majeure”** | means any event materially affecting the performance by a Party of its obligations under this Contract arising from any act, event, omission, happening or non-happening beyond its reasonable control affecting either Party, including, but not limited to: fire, flood, earthquake, storm or other natural disaster, epidemic or pandemic, explosion, terrorist attack; nuclear, chemical or biological contamination; compliance with any governmental order/regulation which comes into effect after the Commencement Date; |
| **"Fraud"** | means any offence under any Laws creating offences in respect of fraudulent acts (including the Misrepresentation Act 1967) or at common law in respect of fraudulent acts including acts of forgery; |
| **"General Change in Law"** | means a Change in Law where the change is of a general legislative nature (including taxation or duties of any sort affecting the Supplier) and which is not a Specific Change in Law; |
| **“Goods”** | means the goods to be provided by the Supplier to the Council as specified in Schedule 1 (the Goods Specification) in accordance with the Contract; |
| **“Good Industry Practice”** | means standards, practices, methods and procedures conforming to the Law and the exercise of such degree of skill, diligence, care and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced Supplier engaged in the supply of Goods and/or Services similar to the Goods and/or Services under the same or similar circumstances as those applicable to this Contract; |
| **“Insolvency Event”** | means where a party:  (a) suspends, or threatens to suspend, payment of its debts or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or admits inability to pay its debts or (being a company or limited liability partnership) is deemed unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986 (**IA 1986**) or (being an individual) is deemed either unable to pay its debts or as having no reasonable prospect of so doing, in either case, within the meaning of section 268 of the IA 1986 or (being a partnership) has any partner to whom any of the foregoing apply;  (b) is the subject of an application to court, or an order is made, for the appointment of an administrator, or a notice of intention to appoint an administrator is filed or an administrator is appointed over the relevant party;  (c) suffers circumstances where the holder of a qualifying floating charge over the assets of the relevant party (being a company or limited liability partnership) has become entitled to appoint or has appointed an administrative receiver or administrator;  (d) suffers circumstances where a person becomes entitled to appoint a receiver over all or any of the assets of the relevant party or a receiver is appointed over all or any of the assets of the relevant party;  (e) is wound up or otherwise is the subject of a winding-up petition;  (f) takes any steps to enter into a compromise with its creditors, including entering into a voluntary arrangement or scheme of arrangement;  (g) is the subject of a bankruptcy petition, application or order;  (h) a creditor or encumbrancer of the relevant party attaches or takes possession of, or a distress, execution, sequestration or other such process is levied or enforced on or sued against, the whole or any part of the other party's assets and such attachment or process is not discharged within 3 days;  (i) the relevant party applies for or consents to or convenes a meeting for the purpose of approving an application for or consenting to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, liquidator, administrator, administrative receiver, supervisor, monitor or similar officer of itself or of all or substantial part of its assets or suffering any such receiver, trustee, liquidator, administrator, administrative receiver, supervisor, monitor or similar officer being appointed or any steps being taken which are intended to lead to such an appointment;  (j) takes any steps to implement a moratorium under Part A1 of IA1986 or suffers any other order to be made for a moratorium on any of its indebtedness;  (k) a court order is made under section 901C(1) of the Companies Act 2006 in relation to it;  (l) any event occurs, or proceeding is taken, with respect to the other party in any jurisdiction to which it is subject that has an effect equivalent or similar to any of the events mentioned in (a) to (k) above (inclusive); |
| **“Intellectual Property”** | means patents, inventions, trademarks, service marks, logos, design rights (whether registerable or otherwise), applications for any of the foregoing, copyright, database rights, domain names, trade or business names and other similar rights or obligations whether registerable or not in any country (including but not limited to the United Kingdom) and the right to sue for passing off; |
| **“Law”** | means any applicable Act of Parliament, subordinate legislation within the meaning of section 21(1) of the Interpretation Act 1978, exercise of the Royal Prerogative, enforceable community right within the meaning of section 2 of the European Communities Act 1972, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy, mandatory guidance or code of practice, judgement of a relevant court of law, or directives or requirements of any regulatory body of which the Supplier is bound to comply; |
| **“LED”** | means the Law Enforcement Directive *(Directive (EU) 2016/680);* |
| **“Liabilities”** | means all costs, actions, demands, expenses, losses, damages, claims, proceedings, awards, fines, orders and other liabilities (including reasonable legal and other professional fees and expenses) whenever arising or brought; |
| **“Materials”** | means any and all works of authorship and materials developed, written or prepared on whatever media for the purposes of or in connection with the Goods and/or Services including, without limitation, any and all reports, studies, data, databases, diagrams, charts, specifications, software, pre-contractual and contractual documents and all drafts thereof and working papers relating thereto; |
| **"Month"** | means a calendar month and “**Monthly**” shall be interpreted accordingly; |
| **"Party"** | means the Council or the Supplier and "**Parties**" shall mean both of them; |
| **"Personal Data and Personal Data Breach"** | has the meaning given to it in the General Data Protection Regulation *(Regulation (EU) 2016/679)*, as amended from time to time; |
| **"Premises"** | means premises owned, controlled or occupied by the Council, which are made available for use by the Supplier or its Sub-Contractors for provision of the Goods and/or Services (or any of them); |
| **“Price”** | means the total price of the Goods and/or Services (exclusive of any applicable VAT) as set out in the Quotation, payable to the Supplier by the Council under this Contract as set out in Annex 1 of Schedule 2 (Contract Price, Payment and Insurance); (to be completed on award) |
| **“Protective Measures”** | means appropriate technical and organisational measures which may include: pseudonymising and encrypting Personal Data, ensuring confidentiality, integrity, availability and resilience of systems and services, ensuring that availability of and access to Personal Data can be restored in a timely manner after an incident, and regularly assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the such measures adopted by it; |
| **"Prohibited Act"** | means any of the following prohibited acts:   * 1. to directly or indirectly offer, promise or give any person working for or engaged by the Council a financial or other advantage to:      1. induce that person to perform improperly a relevant function or activity; or      2. reward that person for improper performance of a relevant function or activity;   2. to directly or indirectly request, agree to receive or accept any financial or other advantage as an inducement or a reward for improper performance of a relevant function or activity in connection with this Contract;   3. committing any offence:      1. under the Bribery Act 2010; or      2. under legislation or common law creating offences concerning fraudulent acts relating to this Contract or any other contract with the Council; or      3. defrauding, attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the Council; or      4. any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute one of the offences listed under (c) above if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK; |
| **“Quotation”** | means the Supplier’s quotation for the Goods and/or Services in response to the Council’s Request for Quotation; |
| **“Records”** | means all documents, data or other information relating to, produced, or received as part of or in connection with the Goods and/or Services and stored on whatever medium; |
| **“Regulatory Bodies”** | means those government departments and regulatory, statutory and other entities, committees, ombudsmen and bodies which, whether under statute, rules, regulations, codes of practice or otherwise, are entitled to regulate, investigate or influence the matters dealt with in the Contract or any other affairs of the Supplier and “**Regulatory Body**” shall be interpreted accordingly; |
| **“Replacement Supplier”** | means any company, organisation or person who replaces the Supplier following termination or expiry of all or part of this Contract; |
| **"Schedules"** | means the schedules attached to this Contract; |
| **“Serious Untoward Incident”** | means an incident or accident or near-miss where a person whether a Service User, member of staff or member of the public suffers serious harm or injury, major permanent harm or unexpected death on the Supplier’s premises or where the Services are being Delivered or where the actions of the Supplier, the Employees or the Council are of significant public concern; |
| **"Services"** | means the services to be provided by the Supplier to the Council as specified in Schedule 1 (the Services Specification) in accordance with the Contract, together with all equipment required and any associated goods provided by the Supplier in relation to those Services; |
| **“Service Users”** | means those individuals who access the Services; |
| **"Specification"** | means the specification setting out the Council's detailed requirements in relation to the Goods and/or Services to be carried out as set out at Schedule 1 (to be attached on award); |
| **"Specific Change in Law"** | means a Change in Law that relates specifically to the business of the Council and which would not affect a comparable Supply; |
| **"Standards"** | means any technical and/or quality standards:  published by BSI British Standards, the National Standards Body of the United Kingdom, the International Organisation for Standardisation or other reputable or equivalent bodies (and their successor bodies) that a skilled and experienced operator in the same type of industry or business sector as the Supplier would reasonably and ordinarily be expected to comply with; or  detailed in the contract Specification (Goods and/or Services) or agreed between the Parties from time to time;  relevant Government codes of practice and guidance applicable from time to time; |
| **"Sub-Contract"** | means any contract or agreement or proposed contract or agreement between the Supplier and any third party whereby that third party agrees to provide to the Supplier the Goods and/or Services or any part thereof or facilities, services necessary for the provision of the Goods and/or Services or any part thereof or necessary for the management, direction or control of the provision of the Goods and/or Services or any part thereof; |
| **"Sub-Contractor"** | means any person engaged by or on behalf of the Supplier as may be permitted under this Contract; |
| **“Supplier”** | means the person, firm or company with whom the Council enters into the Contract as set out above; |
| **“Supplier’s Contract Manager”** | means the name of the person duly notified to the Council in writing by the Supplier as the person responsible for managing the Contract, as set out in Schedule 4 (to be completed on award); |
| **"Termination Notice"** | means a written notice of termination given by one Party to the other, notifying the Party receiving the notice of the intention of the Party giving the notice to terminate this Contract on a specified date and setting out the grounds for termination; |
| **"Valid Invoice"** | means an invoice issued by the Supplier to the Council that contains all appropriate references and a detailed breakdown of the Goods and/or Services provided and that is supported by any relevant documentation reasonably required by the Council to substantiate the invoice; |
| **"VAT"** | means value added tax in accordance with the provisions of the Value Added Tax Act 1994; |
| **“Working Day”** | means Monday to Friday, excluding public and bank holidays in England and Wales; and |
| **"Year"** | means a calendar year and “**Annually**” shall be interpreted accordingly. |

* 1. Reference in this Contract to:
     1. any statute, statutory instrument, order, regulation or other similar instrument ("legislation") shall be construed as a reference to the legislation as amended, replaced or re-enacted from time to time;
     2. any reference to a statutory regulatory or registration body or authority shall include any successor body or authority or replacement from time to time performing the same or similar functions;
     3. (except where the context otherwise requires) words denoting the singular include the plural and vice-versa, words denoting any gender include all genders and words denoting persons include suppliers and corporations and their successors and permitted assigns or transferees and vice-versa; and
  2. Any reference to a person shall include any natural person, partnership, joint venture, body corporate, incorporated association, government, governmental agency, persons having a joint or common interest, or any other legal or commercial entity or undertakings.
  3. The index and headings to the clauses, appendices and schedules of this Contract are for ease of reference only and will not affect its construction or interpretation.

1. DUE DILIGENCE
   1. The Supplier acknowledges that:
      1. the Council has delivered or made available to the Supplier all of the Due Diligence Information and documents that the Supplier considers necessary or relevant for the performance of its obligations under this Contract; and
      2. it has made its own enquiries to satisfy itself as to the accuracy and adequacy of the Due Diligence Information and has entered into this Contract in reliance on its own due diligence alone.
2. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS
   1. The Supplier warrants and represents that:
      1. it has full capacity and authority to enter into and to perform its obligations under this Contract;
      2. it has all necessary licences, rights and permissions to carry out its obligations under this Contract;
      3. this Contract is executed by its duly authorised representatives;
      4. in entering the Contract it has not committed any Fraud and/or offence under the Bribery Act 2010;
      5. this Contract shall be performed in compliance with all Laws (as amended from time to time) and all applicable Standards;
      6. it shall act in good faith in the performance of all terms and obligations set out in this Contract, and shall take such action as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate in order to perform this Contract;
      7. it shall conduct its business in a manner that is consistent with the principles of the Modern Slavery Act 2015;
      8. it is not in Default in the payment of any due and payable taxes or social security contributions or in the filing, registration or recording of any document required by Law which Default might have a material adverse effect on its business, assets or financial condition or its ability to observe or perform the Goods and/or Services or its obligations under the Contract;
      9. no claim is being asserted and no litigation, arbitration, administrative proceeding or Insolvency Event is presently in progress or, to the best of its knowledge and belief, pending or threatened against it or its assets which will or might affect its ability to perform its obligations under the Contract.
   2. The Supplier warrants and represents that for the Contract Period the Goods and/or Services will be provided:
      1. in a proper, skilful and workmanlike manner;
      2. by a sufficient number of appropriately qualified, trained and experienced Employees with a high standard of skill, care and due diligence and in accordance with good industry practice and, where applicable, will be subject to staff vetting procedures, quality standards and any DBS requirements notified to the Supplier from time to time;
      3. in accordance in all respects with the requirements of any applicable Law from time to time in force and that it has and will continue to hold all necessary regulatory approvals from any regulatory body necessary to perform the Supplier’s obligations under the Contract;
      4. in accordance with the Specification set out in Schedule 1 to this Contract and any descriptions provided by the Supplier;
      5. to the reasonable satisfaction of the Council and of satisfactory quality;
   3. If at any time the Council becomes aware that a warranty or representation given by the Supplier under clauses 3.1 to 3.2 has been breached, is untrue or is misleading, it shall immediately notify the Supplier of the relevant occurrence in sufficient detail to enable the Supplier to make an accurate assessment of the situation.
3. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
   1. The Contract and the documents referred to in it constitute the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Contract. The Contract supersedes all prior negotiations, representations and undertakings, whether written or oral, except that this clause 4.1 shall not exclude liability in respect of any fraudulent misrepresentation.
4. DURATION OF CONTRACT
5. Contract Period
   1. The Contract shall commence on the 08/06/2022 (Commencement Date) and shall expire on 30/10/2022, unless terminated as hereinafter provided.
6. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE
7. SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES
   1. The Supplier shall supply the Goods and/or Services during the Contract Period in accordance with the Specification and Council's requirements as set out in this Contract. The Supplier agrees that the Council relies on the skill and judgment of the Supplier in the provision of the Goods and/or Services and the performance of its obligations under this Contract during the Contract Period.
   2. If the Council informs the Supplier in writing that the Council reasonably believes that any part of the Goods and/or Services does not meet the requirements of the Contract or differs in any way from those requirements, the Supplier shall at its own expense re-schedule and carry out the Goods and/or Services in accordance with the requirements of the Contract within such reasonable time as may be specified by the Council.
8. QUALITY STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE
   1. The Supplier shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining all licences, authorisations, consents or permits required in relation to the performance of its obligations under this Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall at all times comply with the Standards specified in the Contract, and where applicable shall maintain accreditation with the relevant quality Standards' authorisation body. To the extent that the standard to which the Goods and/or Services must be provided has not been specified in the Contract, the Supplier shall agree the relevant standard for the provision of the Goods and/or Services with the Council prior to the provision of the Goods and/or Services commencing, and in any event, the Supplier shall perform its obligations under the Contract in accordance with all applicable Law and Good Industry Practice.
   3. The Supplier shall be responsible for the accuracy of all drawings, plans, documentation and information supplied to the Council in connection with the performance of this Contract.
   4. The Supplier shall ensure that its Employees shall at all times during the Contract Period:
      1. faithfully and diligently perform those duties and exercise such powers as necessary in connection with the provision of the Goods and/or Services;
      2. obey all lawful instructions and reasonable directions of the Council and provide the Goods and/or Services to the reasonable satisfaction of the Council; and
      3. apply all reasonable skill, care and diligence.
   5. The Supplier shall perform its obligations under the Contract in a timely manner.
   6. The Supplier shall, at no additional charge, provide on request to the Council complete and accurate data, management information and performance monitoring reports in accordance with the provisions of the Specification and/or Schedule 3 (Performance Monitoring and Reporting).
   7. **NOT USED**
   8. **NOT USED**
9. CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENTS AND BEST VALUE DUTY
   1. The Supplier shall have an ongoing obligation throughout the Contract Period to identify new or potential improvements to the provision of the Goods and/or Services, with a view to reducing the Council’s costs and/or improving the quality and efficiency of the Goods and/or Services and their supply. The Supplier shall ensure that the information that it provides to the Council shall be sufficient for the Council to decide whether any improvement should be implemented.
   2. The Supplier must (to the extent that is reasonably practicable) co-operate with and assist the Council in fulfilling its Best Value Duty.
10. PERFORMANCE MONITORING
    1. The Supplier shall perform the Goods and/or Services in accordance with the Specification set out in Schedule 1 to this Contract and shall comply and co-operate with any reasonable instructions given by the Council’s Contract Manager.
    2. The Supplier shall comply with the monitoring arrangements referred to in this Contract including, but not limited to, providing such data, management information and performance monitoring reports as the Supplier may be required to produce in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.
    3. The Supplier shall be responsible for compliance with and ensure that all obligations are performed in accordance with the health and safety requirements and any information and data security policy or rules notified by the Council to the Supplier from time to time.
    4. The Supplier will be responsible at its own cost and expense for the provision of all necessary Employees, Materials and equipment for the management and execution of any obligation under the Contract.
    5. If the Supplier at any time becomes aware of any material matter that could affect the performance of the Goods and/or Services in accordance with the Contract, the Supplier shall inform the Council immediately.
11. SUPPLIER’S FINANCIAL STABILITY
    1. The Supplier shall notify the Council immediately if it becomes aware of any event or occurrence, current or future that may result in the Supplier potentially being unable to continue as a going concern, including but not limited to any Insolvency Event or risk of an Insolvency Event.
12. CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS
    1. The Supplier shall comply with the terms of the Human Rights Act 1998 as if it were a public body and was subject to its terms.
    2. The Supplier shall comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and shall notify the Council immediately in writing if it becomes aware or has reason to believe that it or any of its officers, Employees, agents or Sub-contractors, have committed an offence under the Modern Slavery Act 2015. Such notice shall set out full details of the circumstances of the breach or the potential breach of the Supplier’s obligations.
    3. The Supplier shall perform its obligations under this Contract in accordance with:
       1. all applicable Law and Good Industry Practice;
       2. Council policies and rules on, but not limited to, equality and diversity; environmental; health and safety; whistleblowing and/or any other Council policies and rules that the Council may deem appropriate from time to time.

1. RECORD KEEPING AND MONITORING
   1. In order to assist the Council in its record keeping and monitoring requirements including auditing and National Audit Office requirements, the Supplier shall keep and maintain for six (6) Years (or such longer time period required in accordance with any specific legislation) after the termination or expiry of the Contract, full and accurate records and accounts of the Contract including the Goods and/or Services supplied under it, all expenditure reimbursed by the Council, and all payments made by the Council. The Supplier shall on request allow the Council or the Council’s authorised representatives such access to (and copies of) those records and accounts as may be required by the Council in connection with the Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall keep the records and accounts referred to in clause 12.1 in accordance with Law and Good Industry Practice and shall maintain throughout the Contract Period safe and effective procedures against the destruction or loss or unauthorised use or alteration of the records and accounts.
2. AUDIT ACCESS AND INSPECTION
   1. The Supplier shall on reasonable notice permit any Auditor access to the records and accounts referred to in clause 12.1 at the Supplier’s premises and/or provide records and accounts or copies of the same, as may be required by any of the Auditors from time to time during the Contract Period.
   2. The Council shall have the right from time to time on reasonable notice to conduct an inspection of the Suppliers premises, operations, facilities, working conditions and its quality, environmental, equality and diversity and health and safety procedures and systems as may be required by the Supplier to provide the Goods and/or Services under this Contract.
3. PAYMENT, EXPENSES AND TAXATION
4. PRICE AND PAYMENT
   1. The Council shall pay the Price for the Goods and/or Services to the Supplier as set out in Schedule 2 (Contract Changes, Payments and Insurance) (to be attached on award) of the Contract, which shall be inclusive of all costs and expenses incurred by the Supplier in providing the Goods and/or Services, in accordance with the terms of this Contract.
   2. The Price does not include Value Added Tax (VAT). The Supplier shall add VAT to the Price at the prevailing rate as applicable and will be paid by the Council following delivery of a Valid Invoice.
   3. The Council shall be classed as an end user for the purpose of section 55A of the Value Added Tax Act 1994, reverse charge for building and construction services, unless informed otherwise.
   4. The Price shall be payable by the Council Monthly in arrears provided that the Supplier submits a Valid Invoice containing appropriate details as agreed with the Council’s Contract Manager together with documentary evidence required to substantiate the invoice.
   5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by both Parties, within ten (10) Calendar Days of the end of each Month the Supplier shall submit a Valid Invoice to the Council. Such invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the Goods and/or Services provided by the Supplier as agreed by the Supplier’s Contract Manager and be supported by documentary evidence.
   6. The Council shall accept and process for payment an electronic invoice submitted for payment by the Supplier where the invoice is undisputed and where it complies with the standard on electronic invoicing.
   7. For the purposes of clause 14.5, an electronic invoice complies with the standard on electronic invoicing where it complies with the European standard and any of the syntaxes published in Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1870.
   8. Payment of any valid and undisputed invoice will be made no later than thirty (30) Calendar Days following the date of receipt and agreement of the invoice by the Council for Goods and/or Services supplied to the satisfaction of the Council.
   9. Where the Supplier enters into a Sub-contract it shall ensure that a provision is included in such Sub-contract which requires payment to be made of all sums due by the Supplier to the Sub-contractor no later than thirty (30) Calendar Days following the date of receipt and agreement of a valid and undisputed invoice, in accordance with the terms of the Sub-contract.
   10. The Council reserves the right to withhold payment of the relevant part of the Price without payment of interest where the Supplier has either failed to provide the Goods and/or Services at all or has provided the Goods and/or Services otherwise than in accordance with the Specification and any invoice relating to such Goods and/or Services will not be paid unless or until the Goods and/or Services have been supplied to the Council’s satisfaction.
   11. The Council will be entitled but not obliged at any time or times without notice to the Supplier to set off any liability of the Council to the Supplier against any liability of the Supplier to the Council (in either case howsoever arising and whether any such liability is present or future, liquidated or unliquidated and irrespective of the currency) and may for such purpose convert or exchange any sums owing to the Supplier into any other currency or currencies in which the obligations of the Council are payable under this Contract. The Council’s rights under this clause 14.10 will be without prejudice to any other rights or remedies available to the Council under this Contract or otherwise.
   12. Where the Council seeks to vary the scope, frequency or performance of the Goods and/or Services (a “Variation”), such Variation shall be discussed and agreed with the Supplier in accordance with the Variation procedures detailed in clause 47 (Contract Variation). Where such Variation is agreed with the Supplier, the Supplier shall be bound to carry out the Goods and/or Services as so varied. Upon such variation the Price payable to the Supplier shall be revised in accordance with the Variation procedures detailed in clause 47 (Contract Variation) to properly and fairly reflect the nature and extent of the Variation. The Supplier shall provide the Council with such information and documentation as the Council may reasonably require to calculate the Price Variation.
   13. Each of the Parties will pay their own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, completion and implementation of this Contract and any Variation.
5. RECOVERY OF SUMS
   1. If any sum of money shall at any time have been, or becomes, recoverable from, or payable by the Supplier to the Council (including any sum which the Supplier is liable to pay to the Council in respect of any breach of the Contract), the Council is entitled to deduct that money from any moneys due under this Contract or any other contract between the Council and the Supplier, irrespective of when such money shall have been or becomes payable or recoverable.
6. SUPPLIERS PERSONNEL AND WORKFORCE MATTERS
7. COUNCIL’S CONTRACT MANAGER
   1. The Council shall at all times during the period of the Contract employ a competent Contract Manager authorised to act on behalf of the Council for all purposes connected with this Contract. Details of that person are set out in Schedule 4.

[Schedule 4 to be completed on award]

1. SUPPLIER’S CONTRACT MANAGER
   1. The Supplier shall employ a competent and authorised Contract Manager authorised to act on behalf of the Supplier for all purposes connected with the Contract. This could be the service manager or another suitable authorised Employee. Details of that person are set out in Schedule 4.

[Schedule 4 to be completed on award]

* 1. The Supplier shall ensure that the Council is aware who the Contract Manager is and who is authorised to act in the absence of the Contract Manager.

1. SUPPLIER’S EMPLOYEES
   1. The Supplier shall ensure that all Employees engaged in the provision of Goods and/or Services under this Contract:
      1. are appropriately qualified, trained and experienced to provide the Goods and/or Services with all reasonable skill, care and diligence;
      2. are vetted in accordance with Good Industry Practice and, where applicable, the DBS requirements and the standards of the Council;
      3. have the legal right to work in the United Kingdom; and
      4. comply with all reasonable requirements of the Council concerning conduct at the Council Premises, including Health and Safety and security requirements notified to the Supplier from time to time;
   2. The Supplier shall ensure that, where appropriate, the national minimum wage is paid to relevant Employees in accordance with the National Minimum Wage Act 1998.
   3. The Supplier shall ensure that during the Contract Period it has sufficient Employees to provide the Goods and/or Services to the specified quality Standards, including during periods of staff absences due to sickness, maternity leave, paternity leave, staff holidays or otherwise.
   4. The Supplier shall procure that the Supplier Employees shall vacate the Council Premises immediately upon the termination or expiry of the Contract.
2. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES
   1. Nothing in this Contract, and no action taken by the Parties pursuant to this Contract, is intended to create a partnership or legal relationship of any kind that would impose liability upon one Party for the act or failure to act of the other Party, or to authorise either Party to act as agent for the other Party. Neither Party shall have authority to make representations, act in the name of, or on behalf of, or to otherwise bind the other Party save as expressly permitted by the terms of this Contract.
   2. At all times during the Contract Period the Supplier shall be an independent contractor and nothing in the Contract shall create a contract of employment, a relationship of agency or partnership or a joint venture between the Parties.
3. DISCLOSURE & BARRING SERVICE (DBS) REQUIREMENTS
   1. The Supplier shall make the necessary arrangements to ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 11 of the Children Act 2004, the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 (the “SVA Act”), (as amended by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and any other subsequent relevant legislation) in respect of all Employees and individuals engaged in the provision of the Goods and/or Services, and the duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in the Delivery of all aspects of the Goods and/or Services.
   2. The Supplier shall ensure that all Employees and individuals engaged in the provision of the Goods and/or Services are registered and enrolled on the Independent Safeguarding Authority list and are subject to a valid enhanced disclosure check through the Disclosure and Barring Service (“DBS”) including a check against the adults’ barred list and the children’s barred list and that such check shall be renewed at least every three (3) Years, and the Supplier shall monitor the level and validity of the checks under this clause 20.2 for each Employee and individual. The Supplier shall ensure that no Employees or individuals engaged in the provision of the Goods and/or Services are barred from the activity in accordance with the provisions of the SVA Act.
   3. The Supplier shall keep records of all checks carried out pursuant to clause 20.2 which shall be stored in accordance with the DBS Code of Practice and the Data Protection Legislation. On or before the Commencement Date the Supplier shall provide the Council with details of the disclosure numbers and dates the disclosures were made, in respect of all Employees and individuals. As and when additional checks are carried out (pursuant to clause 20.2) the Supplier shall provide the Council with details of the disclosure numbers and dates the disclosures were made, promptly.
   4. Where the disclosure information on a DBS certificate reveals criminal activity, a risk assessment must be carried out and kept by the Supplier and a copy provided promptly to the Council upon completion.
   5. The Supplier will comply with Good Industry Practice and any relevant industry standards and guidance in relation to following good practice and carrying out repeat DBS Checks where required, for the avoidance of doubt the Supplier shall bear the costs of or arising from complying with this clause 20.
   6. The Supplier shall indemnify the Council against all Liabilities incurred by the Council arising from or connected to the Supplier’s failure to comply with this clause 20.
4. WORKFORCE COMPETENCIES AND TRAINING
   1. The Supplier will ensure that all Employees are competent in their role and are actively engaged in staff development procedures. The Supplier will:
      1. be able to evidence its compliance with any national occupational standards, and employ Employees according to relevant procedures and competencies and ensure that all job descriptions are mapped to national occupational standards and outline the role, responsibilities and competencies required to effectively carry out the post;
      2. ensure that all Employees are aware of and comply with relevant sections of national legislation governing their roles;
      3. ensure that staff induction, supervision and appraisal procedures are all in place and submit copies and review dates of all human resources policies and protocols on request;
      4. identify and make available resources for on-going training needs and professional development, determined by a competency analysis based on national occupational standards, including attendance at any training deemed appropriate and necessary by the Council;
      5. have appropriate conduct and disciplinary procedures Approved by the Council in place and enforce these;
      6. have a named individual as a contact for workforce issues, who will disseminate information to the respective colleagues;
      7. ensure that there is at all times a sufficient level of appropriate staff cover to provide a safe, effective and accessible service.
   2. The Supplier must maintain and keep accurate records on individual Employee members, which should include (but not limited to) personal details of recruitment, induction, training, supervision and appraisal, including Disclosure and Barring Service, Protection of Vulnerable Adult or Independent Safeguarding Authority check, and copies of relevant certification and references.
   3. **Not Used**
   4. **Not Used**
5. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND INFORMATION
6. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
   1. The Supplier shall ensure and procure that the performance of the Supplier’s responsibilities and obligations under this Contract shall not infringe any Intellectual Property of any third party.
   2. All Intellectual Property in any specifications, instructions, plans, data, drawings, databases, patents, patterns, models, designs or other material:
      1. provided to the Supplier by the Council shall remain the property of the Council;
      2. prepared by or for the Supplier specifically for the use, or intended use, in relation to the performance of this Contract shall belong to the Council subject to any exceptions set out in the Contract.
   3. The Council shall own and be entitled to use, modify, arrange and copy all property, copyright and all other Intellectual Property (“the Intellectual Property”) including but without limitation the database rights in any database, in all Materials developed, originated, written or prepared by the Supplier (whether individually or jointly with the Council) for the purposes of this Contract.

For the avoidance of doubt, any Intellectual Property of the Supplier whether in existence at the Commencement Date or afterwards shall be the property of the Supplier and the Council shall have no right over or in that Intellectual Property.

* 1. The Supplier agrees to promptly notify the Council in writing of any breach or claim of breach of any Intellectual Property in use for the purposes of this Contract and shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Council against any and all claims, liability, loss, damages, costs and expenses which the Council may incur or suffer as a result of a breach by the Supplier of the warranties set out in this clause.

1. CONFIDENTIALITY
   1. The Supplier and the Council shall keep confidential and safeguard all Confidential Information shared between them obtained under or in connection with this Contract and shall not divulge the same to any third party without the written consent of the Party in whom the ownership of the Confidential Information is vested.
   2. The provisions of this clause 23 shall not apply to the extent that:
      1. such information was already in the public domain otherwise than by breach of this Contract;
      2. such information was obtained from a third party who is free to divulge the same;
      3. such information was personally developed without access to the other party’s Confidential Information;
      4. such disclosure is a requirement of Law, placed upon the Party making the disclosure.
   3. The Parties shall divulge Confidential Information only to those persons who are directly involved in providing the Goods and/or Services under this Contract and who need to know the information, and shall ensure that such persons are aware of and comply with these obligations as to confidentiality.
   4. The Supplier will ensure that it maintains the integrity and confidentiality of all personal information held in respect of any past or present Service Users but will disclose such information to the Council on request for the purpose of monitoring, evaluation, audit, inspection, crime prevention and prosecution, or the exercise of the Council’s Safeguarding functions. Such information shall be disclosed to the Council within one (1) Working Day of receipt of the Council’s request.
   5. Each Party shall immediately notify the other Party if it suspects or becomes aware of any unauthorised access, copying, use or disclosure in any form of any of the other Party’s Confidential Information.
   6. The provisions of this clause 23 shall continue in perpetuity.
2. **NOT USED**
3. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
   1. The Supplier acknowledges that the Council is subject to the requirements of the FOIA and the EIR and shall assist and cooperate with the Council to enable the Council to comply with its Information disclosure obligations in a timely manner.
   2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained or implied in any documents ornegotiations leading to the formation of this Contract or in this Contract:
      1. the Council shall be entitled to publish and/or release any and all terms or conditions of this Contract, the contents of any documents, Schedules and/or information contained in or relating to the formation of this Contract under the provisions of the FOIA, EIR or the Local Government Transparency Code 2014, (“the Code”) as it sees fit;
      2. nothing contained in this Contract shall prevent the Council from comply with its Information disclosure obligations under the FOIA or the EIR.
   3. The Supplier shall and shall procure that its Sub-contractors shall co-operate with the Council and supply to it all necessary information and documentation required in connection with any request received by the Council under the FOIA or the EIR, in the form that the Council requires, at no additional charge and within five (5) Working Days of receipt of any such request.
   4. The Supplier shall not publish or otherwise disclose any information contained in this Contract or in any negotiations leading to the formation of it without the Council's previous written consent.
4. TRANSPARENCY
   1. The Parties acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA and the EIR or has been identified in the Supplier’s proposal as Commercially Sensitive Information, the terms or conditions of this Contract, and any Schedules to this Contract, is not Confidential Information. The Council shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any part of the Contract or its Schedules is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA and the EIR.
   2. Subject to Clause 26.1, the Supplier hereby gives its consent for the Council to publish the Contract, including from time to time agreed changes to the Contract, to the general public in whatever form the Council agrees.
5. PUBLICITY
   1. The Supplier will not use any corporate logos of the Council nor refer to the Council or this Contract or the Goods and/or Services, directly or indirectly, in connection with any product, promotion or publication and shall not at any time during the Contract Period or thereafter make any public statement in relation to the Council or its businesses, affairs, Councils or clients, without the prior written permission of the Council.
6. LIABILITY, INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
7. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE
   1. The Supplier shall effect and maintain insurance necessary to cover any liability arising under this Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall, prior to the Commencement Date and on each anniversary of the Commencement Date and/or upon request, provide copies of all insurance policies referred to in this clause to demonstrate that the appropriate insurance cover is in place, together with receipts or other evidence of payment that all premiums relating to such insurances have been paid in full.
   3. The Supplier shall at all times throughout the Contract Period maintain in force such policies of insurance with reputable insurers or underwriters as are sufficient to cover its liability under this Contract.
   4. Neither Party excludes or limits liability to the other for death or personal injury caused by its negligence or any such liability which it is not permissible to exclude by Law.
   5. The Supplier shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Council fully against all Liabilities arising out of, in respect of, or in connection with the Contract including in respect of any death or personal injury, direct loss of or damage to property, financial loss arising from any advice given or omitted to be given by the Supplier, or any other loss which is caused directly or indirectly by an act or omission of the Supplier. This clause 28.5 shall not apply to the extent that the Supplier is able to demonstrate that such death or personal injury, or loss or damage was not caused or contributed to by its negligence or Default, or the negligence or Default of its Employees or by any circumstances within its or their control.
   6. The Supplier shall notify the Council as soon as possible and in any event within forty-eight (48) hours of any incident that may lead to any claim, demand or proceedings and shall supply such particulars or details thereof as the Council shall reasonably require.
   7. The Supplier shall fully and promptly indemnify the Council in respect of any damage whatsoever caused by any Employees or Sub-contractor, whether such damage be caused by negligence or in any other way whatsoever to any land, building or chattel in the ownership, occupation or possession of the Council arising out of or in consequence of the performance of the Contract or the performance of the Goods and/or Services.
   8. The provisions of this clause 28 shall survive the termination or expiry of this Contract for whatever reason.
8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
   1. Subject to clause 34.1, the Council’s total liability arising under, or in connection with, this Contract, whether in tort (including negligence or breach of statutory duty), contract, misrepresentation, restitution or otherwise, shall be limited as follows:
      1. for non-payment of invoices for Goods and/or Services purchased, to the amount unpaid; and
      2. for any other type of liability, to the amount paid for the Goods and/or Services under the Contract.
   2. Subject to clause 29.1, the Supplier’s total liability arising under, or in connection with, this Contract, whether in tort (including negligence or breach of statutory duty), contract, misrepresentation, restitution or otherwise, shall be limited to five (5) million sterling or one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) of the total Price whichever is the greater.
   3. Subject to clause 34.1, neither Party will be liable to the other Party for:
      1. any indirect, special or consequential loss or damage; or
      2. any loss of profits, turnover, business opportunities or damage to goodwill (whether direct or indirect).
   4. Subject to clause 29.2 the Council may, amongst other things, recover from the Supplier the following direct losses incurred by the Council to the extent that they arise as a result of a Default by the Supplier:
      1. any additional operational and/or administrative costs and expenses, including costs relating to time spent by or on behalf of the Council in dealing with the consequences of the Default;
      2. any wasted expenditure or charges rendered unnecessary;
      3. the additional cost of procuring replacement Goods and/or Services for the remainder of the Contract Period;
      4. any anticipated savings;
      5. in the event of the Supplier suffering an Insolvency Event, any costs arising as a result of the Insolvency Event; and
      6. any fine, penalty or costs incurred by the Council pursuant to Law.
   5. Subject to this clause each Party shall use all reasonable endeavours to mitigate any loss or damage suffered arising out of or in connection with this Contract.
9. REMEDIES
10. **COUNCIL REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT**
    1. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Council howsoever arising, if any of the Goods and/or Services supplied are not in accordance with the Contract, the Council shall be entitled to:
       1. at the Council's option, give the Supplier the opportunity (at the Supplier's expense) to remedy the Default together with any damage resulting from such Default (where such Default is capable of remedy) or to supply replacement Goods and/or Services and carry out any other reasonably necessary work to ensure that the terms of this Contract are fulfilled, in accordance with the Council's instructions;
       2. carry out, at the Supplier's expense, any work necessary to make the provision of the Goods and/or Services comply with this Contract; or
       3. subject to clause 28 (Liability and Insurance) require repayment of the proportion of the Price which has been paid in respect of such Goods and/or Services together with payment of any additional expenditure over and above the Price reasonably incurred by the Council in obtaining replacement Goods and/or Services.
11. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE**
    1. If a Dispute arises between the Council and the Supplier out of or in connection with the Contract, the Parties shall each use reasonable endeavours to resolve such Dispute by means of prompt discussion at an appropriate managerial level within ten (10) Working Days of written notice of the Dispute being served by one Party on the other without recourse to legal proceedings.
    2. If a Dispute is not resolved within ten (10) Working Days of referral under clause 31.1 then either Party may escalate it to senior representatives of each Party for resolution who shall meet for discussion within ten (10) Working or longer period as the Parties may agree.
    3. Provided that both Parties consent, a Dispute not resolved in accordance with clauses 31.1 and 31.2, shall first be referred to mediation or other alternative Dispute resolution procedure as agreed between the Parties, each acting in good faith. If the Parties are unable to agree a procedure or any aspect of a procedure they will seek assistance from the Centre of Dispute Resolution at Exchange Tower, 1 Harbour Exchange Square, London, E14 9GB. Unless otherwise agreed, the Parties will share equally the costs of mediation.
12. **CUMULATIVE REMEDIES**
    1. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, all rights and remedies under this Contract are cumulative and do not exclude any rights or remedies provided by Law, in equity or otherwise.
13. TERMINATION AND EXIT MANAGEMENT
14. BREAK CLAUSE
    1. By mutual agreement either the Council or the Supplier may terminate the whole or any part of this Contract by giving the other Party thirty (30) Working Days notice in writing indicating its intention to do so.
15. TERMINATION
    1. The Council shall be entitled to terminate this Contract and the Supplier’s engagement without any payment in lieu of notice, compensation or damages forthwith upon the Council becoming aware of the following:
       1. if the Supplier shall be in material or persistent breach or non-observance of any of the provisions in this Contract or shall wilfully neglect or refuse to comply with any reasonable and lawful directions of the Council and/or carry out any of its obligations under this Contract; or
       2. if the Supplier or anyone providing Goods and/or Services on behalf of the Supplier shall act in any way which may, in the reasonable opinion of the Council, bring the Council into disrepute.
    2. The Council may require the Supplier to terminate a Sub-contract where the acts or omissions of the relevant Sub-contractor have caused or materially contributed to the Council's right of termination pursuant to any of the termination events in clause 34.1.
    3. The Council may forthwith terminate this Contract and recover from the Supplier any amount the Council has lost in terminating the same, if the Supplier or anyone acting on its behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the Supplier) shall have:
       1. offered or given or agreed to give any person any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward in respect of this Contract or any other Contract for doing or forbearing to do or for having done or forborne to do any action in relation to the obtaining or execution of the Contract or any other Contract with the Council;
       2. shown or forborne to show any favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the Contract or any other Contract with the Council;
       3. committed an offence under the Bribery Act 2010; or
       4. given any fee or reward to an officer of the Council which is an offence under section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972.

* 1. The Council may terminate the Contract by notice in writing with immediate effect with no liability to make any further payment to the Supplier (other than in respect of amounts accrued in accordance with clause 35.1) where the Supplier:
     1. undergoes a change of control (within the meaning of section 450 and section 1124 of the Corporation Taxes Act 2010), which impacts adversely and materially on the performance of the Contract; or
     2. suffers an Insolvency Event; or

* + 1. is guilty of any Fraud or dishonesty or acts in any manner which in the reasonable opinion of the Council brings or is likely to bring the Supplier or the Council into disrepute or is materially adverse to the interests of the Council; or
    2. is unable to agree to or provide a Variation in accordance with clause 47; or
    3. fails to comply in the performance of this Contract with its legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour law or the Modern Slavery Act 2015.
  1. The Council may serve a Termination Notice on the Supplier where:
     1. there has been a change of circumstances that has substantially modified the Contract within the meaning of Regulation 73 of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and as a result the Council is required to initiate a new procurement procedure;
     2. the Supplier, including any person employed by the Supplier in an administrative, management or supervisory role and including any person who has powers of representation, decision making or control within the Supplier, becomes the subject of a Conviction for one of the reasons set out in Regulation 57(1) of the Public Contract Regulations 2015;
     3. the Contract is declared ineffective by a review body in accordance with Regulation 98(2) of the Public Contract Regulations 2015.
  2. Either Party may terminate the Contract by written notice to the other Party with immediate effect if that other Party commits a Default and:
     1. the Default is not remedied within thirty (30) Working Days, or such other period as may be agreed between the Parties, after issue of a written notice specifying the Default and requesting it to be remedied; or
     2. the Default is not capable of remedy; or
     3. the Default is a material breach of the Contract.
  3. The Council reserves the right to terminate the Contract at will (in whole or in part) at any time with or without notice (except that it will give as much notice as possible in the circumstances) if the Supplier shall commit a material or persistent breach of this Contract.
  4. The proper exercise by the Council of its right of termination under this clause 34 shall be without prejudice to any other rights or remedies which the Council may have or be entitled to exercise against the Supplier.

1. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY
   1. On termination of the Contract pursuant to clauses 33 or 34.4, 34.5, 34.6 or 38.5 or 53.1 the Council shall:
      1. pay to the Supplier sums due and reasonably incurred up to the date of termination where the Council has received Goods and/or Services to the equivalent value;
      2. pay to the Supplier sums due for expenditure incurred after the date of termination only in so far as it is a result of commitments entered into by the Supplier in good faith before the date on which notice of termination was given and which cannot be voided on or before the termination date. The Supplier shall submit a fully itemised and costed list of such loss, with supporting evidence of losses reasonably and actually incurred by the Supplier as a result of termination within five (5) Working Days of receiving the notice of termination provided that any such sum payable in accordance with this clause 35.1 shall only be payable by the Council if it would have been payable in accordance with this Contract if it had not been terminated.
   2. The Council shall not be liable under clause 35.1.2 to pay any sum which was claimable under insurance held by the Supplier, or when added to any sum paid or due to the Supplier under the Contract, exceeds the total sum that would have been payable to the Supplier if the Contract had not been terminated prior to the expiry of the Contract Period.
   3. Termination or expiry of this Contract shall not affect any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities of the Parties that have accrued up to the date of termination or expiry, including the right to claim damages in respect of any breach of the Contract which existed at or before the date of termination or expiry.
2. **EXIT MANAGEMENT**
   1. The Supplier shall assist and co-operate fully with the Council in managing the smooth and timely transition of the Contract on termination (in whole or in part, howsoever arising) or expiry of this Contract, by providing all necessary reasonable resources and information for ending the Contract and/or for transferring the Goods and/or Services to the Council or its Replacement Supplier.
3. MISCELLANEOUS
4. NOTICES
   1. Any notice required by this Contract to be given by either Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be served personally, by fax, by email or by sending it by registered post or recorded delivery either to Rutland County Council, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland LE15 6HP or (as the case may be) to the registered office or nominated business address of the Supplier as referred to in Schedule 4 (Representatives of the Parties).
   2. Any notice served personally will be deemed to have been served on the day of delivery; any notice sent by post will be deemed to have been served forty-eight (48) hours after it was posted; any notice sent by fax will be deemed to have been served twenty-four (24) hoursafter it was despatched and any notice sent by email before 5 p.m. will be deemed to have been served on the day of despatch and otherwise on the following Working Day.
5. **Prevention of Bribery and CORRUPTION**
   1. The Supplier:
      1. shall comply with allapplicable laws, statutes, regulations and codes relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 and shall ensure that all Supplier Employees and any Sub**-**contractor, in connection with this Contract, shall comply with allapplicable laws, statutes, regulations and codes relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010;
      2. warrants, represents and undertakes that to the best of its knowledge it is not aware of any financial or other advantage of any kind being given to any person working for or engaged by the Council, or that an agreement has been reached to that effect, in connection with the execution and/or performance of this Contract, excluding any arrangement of which full details have been disclosed in writing to the Council before the execution of this Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall have, maintain and where appropriate enforce an anti-bribery policy (which shall be disclosed to the Council on request) to prevent any Supplier Employees or Sub-contractor from committing a Prohibited.
   3. The Supplier shall take all reasonable steps, in accordance with Good Industry Practice, to prevent a Prohibited Act by the Supplier Employees or Sub-contractor.
   4. Any anti-bribery policy put in place by the Supplier shall in addition include the Supplier’s Prevention of Fraud policy, which shall incorporate the Council’s Counter Fraud Prevention Strategy. The Council’s Counter Fraud Prevention Strategy can be found on the Council’s website using the following link, under the heading ‘Part 5 - 4. Codes and Protocols - Counter Fraud Strategy’:-

<http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=349&MId=1735&info=1&MD=Constitution>

* 1. The Council may terminate this Contract by written notice with immediate effect if the Supplier, Supplier Employees or Sub-contractor (in all cases whether or not acting with the Supplier's knowledge) breaches clause 38. In determining whether to exercise the right of termination under this clause 38.5, the Council shall give all due consideration, where appropriate, to action other than termination of this Contract unless the Prohibited Act is committed by the Supplier or a senior officer of the Supplier or by an Employee, Sub-contractor or supplier not acting independently of the Supplier. The expression "not acting independently of" (when used in relation to the Supplier or a Sub-contractor) means and shall be construed as acting:
     1. with the authority; or,
     2. with the actual knowledge;

of any one or more of the directors of the Supplier or the Sub-contractor (as the case may be); or in circumstances where any one or more of the directors of the Supplier ought reasonably to have had knowledge.

* 1. Any termination under clause 38.5 will be without prejudice to any right or remedy which has already accrued or subsequently accrues to the Council.

1. INDUCEMENTS
   1. The Supplier shall not offer or give, or agree to give, to any employee, agent, servant or representative of the Council any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of the Contract or any other contract with the Council, or for showing or refraining from showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the Contract or any such contract. The attention of the Supplier is drawn to the criminal offences under the Bribery Act 2010.
   2. The Supplier warrants that it has not paid commission, nor agreed to pay any commission, to any employee or representative of the Council by the Supplier or on the Supplier’s behalf.
2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
   1. The Supplier shall take appropriate steps to ensure that neither the Supplier nor any Employee, agent, Supplier or Sub-contractor is placed in a position where (in the reasonable opinion of the Council), there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Supplier or such person and the duties owed to the Council under the provisions of this Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall promptly notify the Council and disclose full particulars of any such conflict of interest which may arise.
3. COUNCIL’S POLICIES
   1. The Supplier shall adopt Policies and such policies shall comply with the Council’s own policies with regard to, for example, equality and diversity, environmental, health & safety, whistleblowing. Copies of such Council policies shall be made available to the Supplier on request in a timely manner.
4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
   1. The Supplier shall comply with its statutory obligations under the Equality Act 2010, and accordingly will not treat one group of people less favourably than others because of their protected characteristic which includes age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation or claims for equal pay in relation to decisions to recruit, train or promote Employees or in the services it provides.
   2. Where relevant, the Supplier must fully comply with the Accessible Information Standard (DCB1605 Accessible Information) in making health and social care information accessible to patients, Service Users, carers and parents with a disability, impairment or sensory loss. Information relating to the Accessible Information Standard can be found using the following link:

<http://www.content.digital.nhs.uk/isce/publication/accessible-information>

1. ENVIRONMENTAL
   1. The Supplier shall work with the Council in so far as necessary to improve the effects of the Goods and/or Services, and their supply, on the environment and shall consider environmental efficiency as part of its operational planning process throughout the Contract Period.
2. HEALTH AND SAFETY
   1. The Supplier and all persons engaged in the performance of this Contract shall comply fully with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations, all health and safety policies of the Council and any other Laws relating to the health and safety of Employees and others who may be affected by the Supplier's work activities.
   2. While on the Council’s Premises, the Supplier shall comply with any health and safety measures implemented by the Council in respect of Employees and other persons working on the Premises.
3. EQUIPMENT
   1. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, the Supplier shall provide and maintain at its own cost all the equipment necessary for the supply of the Goods and/or Services or its obligations under this Contract and such equipment shall not be delivered without the Council’s prior Approval. Equipment brought onto the Premises will remain the property of the Supplier at all times.
4. TRANSFER, SUB-CONTRACTING AND RESPONSIBILITY
   1. Neither the Council nor the Supplier shall assign, novate or sub-contract or in any other way dispose of this Contract or any part thereof without the prior written consent of the other Party. Sub-contracting any part of the Contract shall not relieve the Supplier of any obligation or duty attributable to the Supplier under the Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall remain responsible and liable for the acts and omissions of any other members of a consortium arrangement, Sub-contractors, servants, agents and Employees as though they were its own.
   3. In the event the Supplier engages a Sub-contractor for the purpose of providing the Goods and/or Services, (in whole or in part), the Supplier shall include a requirement within every Sub-contract to provide for the following:
      1. payment will be made of all sums due by the Supplier to the Sub-contractor no later than thirty (30) Calendar Days following the date of receipt and agreement of a valid and undisputed invoice;
      2. a requirement that the Sub-contract includes substantially the same provisions as those contained in this Contract, including an obligation to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and
      3. a right for the Supplier to terminate the Sub-contract if the relevant Sub-contractor fails to comply in the performance of its contract with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour law.
   4. If the Council agrees that the Supplier may Sub-contract its obligations under this Contract, the Supplier shall ensure that it has the ability to audit its Sub-contracts to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Sub-contract.
   5. If the Council assigns, novates, transfers, charges, mortgages, Sub-contracts, delegates or deals in any other manner with all or any of its rights under the Contract the Supplier shall continue to provide the Goods and/or Services as agreed under this Contract, at no additional cost in so far as no additional obligations are placed upon the Supplier in performing the Goods and/or Services.
5. CONTRACT VARIATION
   1. Subject to the provisions of this clause 47 either Party may request a variation to this Contract provided that such variation does not amount to a material change of this Contract within the meaning of the Regulations and the Law. Such a change once implemented is hereinafter called a "Variation".
   2. No Variation to this Contract is valid unless it is in writing and signed/sealed (as appropriate) by both Parties, using a Deed of Variation.
   3. If the Parties agree the Variation, the Supplier shall implement such Variation and be bound by the same provisions so far as is applicable, as though such Variation was stated in this Contract.
6. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION
   1. This Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of England and shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.
7. CHANGE IN LAW
   1. The Supplier shall comply at all times with the Law in its performance of this Contract and shall neither be relieved of its obligations to provide the Goods and/or Services in accordance with the terms of this Contract nor be entitled to an increase in the Price and/or any charges payable by the Supplier as the result of a General change in law or Specific Change in Law where the effect of that Specific Change in Law on the Goods and/or Services is reasonably foreseeable at the Commencement Date.
   2. If a Specific Change in Law occurs or will occur during the Contract Period the Supplier shall notify the Council of the likely effects of that change, including whether any Variation is required to the provision of the Goods and/or Services, the Price or the Contract.
   3. Any Variation agreed by the Parties pursuant to clause 49.2 shall be implemented in accordance with clause 47 (Contract Variation).
8. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS
   1. Nothing in this Contract shall create any rights for third parties under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the “Act”). No Variation of this Contract and no supplemental or ancillary agreement to this Contract shall create any such rights unless expressly so stated in any such agreement by the Parties. This does not affect any right or remedy of a third party which exists or is available from the Act.
9. NO WAIVER
   1. Failure by either Party at any time to enforce any one or more of the provisions of this Contract or to require strict performance by the other Party of any of the provisions shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver of the provision or of the right at any time subsequently to enforce all terms and conditions of this Contract nor affect the validity of the Contract or any part of it or the right of the Parties to enforce any provision in accordance with its terms.
10. SEVERANCE
    1. If any provision (or part of any provision) of the Contract shall become or shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any way, such invalidity shall not impair or affect any other provision all of which shall remain in full force and effect as if the Contract had been executed with the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision eliminated.
11. FORCE MAJEURE
    1. Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for any delay in performing, or failure to perform, its obligations under the Contract if such delay or failure results from Force Majeure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party shall use all reasonable endeavours to continue to perform its obligations under the Contract for the duration of such Force Majeure. If a Party is unable to perform its material obligations under the Contract as a result of a Force Majeure event for a period of more than three (3) Months (commencing on the date of the Force Majeure notices served by the Party seeking to claim relief), the other Party may terminate the Contract by notice in writing to the other Party with immediate effect or on a set termination date.
    2. Industrial action by, or illness or shortage of the Employees, agents or Sub-contractors, failure or delay by any of the Supplier’s suppliers to supply Goods, Services, components, or materials and breach of the Supplier’s warranties under clause 3 shall not be regarded as an event of Force Majeure.
    3. The Supplier will not have the right to any payment from the Council under this Contract where the Supplier is unable to provide the Good and/or Services or otherwise perform its obligations under the Contract because of an event of Force Majeure.

1. SAFEGUARDING
2. SAFEGUARDING
   1. The Supplier will comply with all requirements of the Children and Families Act 2014 to adequately assess and safeguard children and young people who are at significant risk and refer all such cases appropriately and in accordance with local protocols.
   2. The Supplier will comply with all requirements of the Care Act 2014 and herein acknowledges its duty to safeguard vulnerable adults from abuse and its responsibility to act on actual or suspected cases of abuse appropriately, including referral and in accordance with local protocols.
   3. The Supplier will comply with all requirements of the Mental Health Act 2007 and the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and in particular ensure that it abides by the requirements of the Deprivation of Liberties Safeguards.
   4. The Supplier must comply at all times with the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Adults Board multi-agency policies and procedures for protecting vulnerable adults from abuse and when called upon to do so, demonstrate how this is being done. These policies and procedures (as amended from time to time) can be found using the following link:

<http://www.rutland.gov.uk/health_and_social_care/safeguarding_adults.aspx>

* 1. These relate to the management of suspicions or allegations of abuse of vulnerable adults, aged eighteen (18) Years and over.
  2. The Supplier must comply at all times with the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Children Board policies and procedures for protecting children from abuse and when called upon to do so, demonstrate how this is being done. These policies and procedures (as amended from time to time) can be found using the following link:

<http://www.rutland.gov.uk/health_and_social_care/safeguarding_children.aspx>

* 1. The policy and procedures are about managing suspicions or allegations of abuse to children until they reach the age of eighteen (18) Years.
  2. The Supplier further acknowledges that the Safeguarding policies and procedures referred to in clause 54.4 and clause 54.6 are liable to amendment in response to statutory and policy changes and hereby consents to the Council making such amendments at its sole discretion without further consultation with or agreement by the Supplier.
  3. At the reasonable written request of the Council and within agreed timescales the Supplier must provide evidence to the Council that it is addressing any safeguarding concerns in accordance with Safeguarding policies and procedures.

55 NOT USED

IN WITNESS of which a duly authorised Representative of the Council and the Supplier have executed this Contract on the day and year first above written

SIGNED for and on behalf of

**RUTLAND COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT COUNCIL**

By its Authorised Signatory

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Signed |  |

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Print Name |  |
| Title |  |
| Date |  |

SIGNED for and on behalf of

[Insert **SUPPLIER’S NAME**]

BY its Authorised Signatory

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Signed |  |

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Print Name |  |
| Title |  |
| Date |  |

**RUTLAND COUNCTY COUNCIL - CONTRACT SCHEDULES**

**SCHEDULE 1: THE SERVICES SPECIFICATION**

1. Produce a costed options appraisal report for the conservation, interpretation, research requirements and management of the two finds, identifying potential funders and outlining a road map for taking the project forward. The report should be developed in consultation with Anglian Water, Rutland County Council, Historic England; architects; specialists including palaeontologists and archaeologists and key stakeholders, such as the National Lottery Heritage Fund and the Friends of Rutland County Museum. The report will be a supporting document for funding applications and the requirements of potential funders should be taken into account when planning the report content.
2. Produce a community engagement plan that sets out how local people, organisations, businesses, tourist visitors and stakeholders will be involved in both the development of the project through a series of activities, events, meetings and workshops, and in the long-term meaningful engagement with these heritage assets, including generating funding. This community engagement will be to inform the development of the next phase of the project and future funding bids.
3. Provide supporting information and images for Rutland County Council’s application for Levelling Up funding which will include the creation of an interpretation and engagement space for these discoveries.
4. Supply electronic copies of the documents to the partners and present draft reports and plans to partners, council members and other stakeholders as required.

**SCHEDULE 2: CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND INSURANCE**

1. NOT USED
2. GENERAL PROVISIONS
   1. This Schedule details:
      1. the Price for the Goods and/or the Services under this Contract;
      2. the payment terms for the Price;
      3. the invoicing procedure; and
      4. the procedure applicable to any adjustments of the Price.
      5. the insurance necessary to cover any liability arising under this Contract.
3. CONTRACT PRICE
   1. The Price which is applicable to this Contract is set out in Annex 1 of this Schedule.
4. COSTS AND EXPENSES
   1. The Price include all costs and expenses relating to the provision of Goods and/or Services and/or the Supplier’s performance of its obligations under this Contract and no further amounts shall be payable by the Council to the Supplier in respect of such performance, including in respect of matters such as:
      1. any incidental expenses that the Supplier incurs, including travel, subsistence and lodging, document or report reproduction, shipping, desktop or office equipment costs required by the Supplier Employees, network or data interchange costs or other telecommunications charges; or
      2. any amount for any services provided or costs incurred by the Supplier prior to the Commencement Date.
5. PAYMENT TERMS
   1. The Supplier shall be paid by monthly periodic payment in arrears in accordance with the payment terms set out in Annex 2 of this Schedule, upon receipt of a valid and undisputed invoice.
6. INVOICING PROCEDURE
   1. The Council shall pay all sums properly due and payable to the Supplier in cleared funds within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receipt and agreement of a Valid and undisputed Invoice, submitted to the address specified by the Council in paragraph 6.4 of this Schedule and in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.
   2. The Supplier shall ensure that each invoice (whether submitted electronically or in a paper form, as the Council may specify):
      1. contains:
         1. all appropriate references, including the unique Order reference number; and
         2. a detailed breakdown of the delivered Goods and/or Services, against the applicable due and payable Price;
      2. shows separately the VAT added to the amount due and payable; and
      3. is supported by any relevant documentation reasonably required by the Council to substantiate that the invoice is a Valid Invoice.
   3. All payments due by one Party to the other shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt and agreement of a Valid and undisputed Invoice unless otherwise specified in this Contract, in cleared funds, to such bank or building society account as the recipient Party may from time to time direct.
   4. The Supplier shall submit invoices either in:
      1. electronic format to [creditors@rutland.gov.uk](mailto:creditors@rutland.gov.uk); or
      2. paper format to:- ‘Creditors, Rutland County Council, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland LE15 6HP’
7. ADJUSTMENT OF CONTRACT PRICE
   1. The Price shall only be varied:
      1. due to a Specific Change in Law in relation to which the Parties agree that a change is required to all or part of the Price in accordance with clause 49 (Change in Law); or
      2. where the Price is expressed in this Schedule as “subject to increase by way of Indexation”, in accordance with the provisions in paragraph 8 of this Schedule.
   2. Subject to paragraphs 7.1.1 or 7.1.2 of this Schedule or clause 14.11 or 47 of the Agreement, the Price shall not increase during the Contract Period.
8. NOT USED

1. IMPLEMENTATION OF ADJUSTED CONTRACT PRICE
   1. Variations in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule to Price (in whole or in part) shall be made by the Council to take effect:
      1. in accordance with clause 49 (Change in Law) where an adjustment to the Price is made in accordance with paragraph 7.1 of this Schedule; or
      2. on the Indexation Adjustment Date where an adjustment to the Price is made in accordance with paragraph 7.1.2 of this Schedule;

and the Parties shall amend the Price shown in Annex 1 to this Schedule to reflect such variations.

**SCHEDULE 2: ANNEX 1: CONTRACT PRICE**

[The Supplier’s quoted Price]

**SCHEDULE 2: ANNEX 2: PAYMENT TERMS**

[Details of the agreed payment terms]

**SCHEDULE 2: ANNEX 3: INSURANCE PROVISION**

* 1. The Supplier shall effect and maintain the following insurances in relation to the performance of its obligations under this Contract:
     1. Employers' Liability insurance with a minimum limit of 5 million pounds sterling £5,000,000 for each individual claim.
  2. The Insurances referred to in paragraph 1 shall be maintained with a reputable insurance company or underwriters as are sufficient to cover its liability under this Contract.
  3. The terms of any insurance or the amount of cover shall not relieve the Supplier of any liabilities arising under this Contract.
  4. The Supplier shall give the Council, on request, copies of all insurance policies referred to in paragraph 1 to demonstrate that the appropriate insurance cover is in place, together with receipts or other evidence of payment of the latest premiums due under those policies.
  5. The Supplier shall ensure that nothing is done which would entitle the relevant insurer to cancel, rescind or suspend any insurance or cover, or to treat any insurance, cover or claim as avoided in whole or part.

**SCHEDULE 3: PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING**

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS
   1. The Supplier shall provide a competent and proactive Contract Manager to ensure that all Standards and/or Service Levels (if any) specified in this Contract are achieved to the highest standard throughout the Contract Period.
2. PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING
   1. The Supplier shall at all times comply with the Service Standards and Service Levels specified in the Specification.
   2. The Supplier shall comply with the monitoring arrangements referred to in this Contract including, but not limited to, the provision of such data, management information and performance monitoring reports as the Council may reasonably require from time to time.
   3. The Supplier shall measure, monitor and report on the performance of this Contract by reference to the Specification, and the Service Standards and Service Levels specified therein, and shall send the Council a quarterly performance monitoring report detailing the level of service which has been achieved against agreed Service Standards to verify compliance with the Specification.
   4. In the event that the Specification fails to specify the Service Standards and Service Levels to which the Goods and/or Services must be provided, and/or the data, management information and performance monitoring reports required in support of those Service Standards, the Supplier shall provide the Council with details of how the process in respect of the monitoring and reporting of Service Standard will operate between the Parties, within twenty (20) Working Days of the Commencement Date. The Parties will endeavour to agree such process as soon as reasonably possible, and in any event, the Supplier shall perform its obligations under this Contract in accordance with all applicable Law and Good Industry Practice.
   5. If there has been, or is likely to be, a failure to achieve the agreed Service Standards in the level of performance of the Supplier and/or in the provision of the Goods and/or Services, the Supplier shall immediately notify the Council in writing advising on what action the Supplier has taken to mitigate the impact of the performance failure on the Council and/or Service User, and to resolve the underlying cause and prevent recurrence.
3. PERFORMANCE REVIEW MEETINGS
   1. The Parties shall attend Performance Review Meetings to discuss the quarterly performance monitoring reports on a three (3) monthly basis (unless otherwise agreed). The Performance Review Meetings will be the forum for the review by the Supplier and the Council of the performance monitoring reports and the level of service which has been achieved against agreed Service Standards.
   2. The Performance Review Meetings shall (unless otherwise agreed) take place at such location and time (within normal business hours) as the Council shall reasonably require and shall be attended by the Supplier's Contract Manager and the Council's Contract Manager, or in the event that they are unable to attend a nominated Authorised Officer of equal status as the Contract Manager.

**SCHEDULE 4: REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES**

[To be completed on award - insert details of each Parties first and second Contract Representatives]

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Council’s Contract Manager | Supplier’s Contract Manager |
| Name:NAME, JOB TITLE Address:  **Rutland County Council**  Catmose, Oakham.  LE15 6HP Telephone: 01572 722577 Email: xxx@rutland.gov.uk | Name:NAME, JOB TITLE Address:  **XXXXXXXXXXXX**  XXXX  XXXX Telephone: XXXX Email: XXXX |
| Council’s second Representative | Supplier’s second Representative |
| Name:NAME, JOB TITLE Address:  **Rutland County Council**  Catmose, Oakham.  LE15 6HP Telephone: 01572 722577 Email: xxx@rutland.gov.uk | Name:NAME, JOB TITLE Address:  **XXXXXXXXXXXX**  XXXX  XXXX Telephone: XXXX Email: XXXX |

**SCHEDULE 5: PROCESSING PERSONAL DATA AND DATA SUBJECTS**

1. The Supplier shall comply with any further written instructions with respect to processing by the Council.
2. Any such further instructions shall be incorporated into this Schedule.